ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 16, 2006
3:36 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Gene Therriault, Chair
Senat or Thomas WAagoner, Vice Chair
Senator Charlie Huggi ns

Senat or Kim Elton

MEMBERS ABSENT
Senat or Bettye Davis
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO 297
"An Act relating to contributions from permanent fund dividends
to certain educational organizations and to certain charitable
organi zations that provide a positive youth devel opnent program
wor kf orce devel opnent, aid to the arts, or aid and services to
the elderly, lowincone individuals, individuals in energency
situations, disabled individuals, or individuals wth nental
illness; and providing for an effective date."

HEARD AND HELD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 297

SHORT TITLE: CONTRI BUTI ONS FROM PERM FUND DI VI DENDS
SPONSOR(s): STATE AFFAI RS

02/ 14/ 06 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 14/ 06 (S) STA, FIN
02/ 16/ 06 (S) STA AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

Heat her Brakes, Staff to Senator Therriault
Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced SB 297

Sharon Barton, Director
Per manent Fund Di vi dend Di vi si on

SENATE STA COW TTEE -1- February 16, 2006



Departnent of Revenue

PO Box 110400

Juneau, AK 99811-0400

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions related to SB 297

Jeff Clarke, Chief Adm nistrative Oficer

Rasmuson Foundati on

301 West Northern Lights Bl vd.

Suite 400

Anchor age, AK 99503

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions related to SB 297

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR GENE THERRI AULT called the Senate State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:36:33 PM Present were Senators
Kim Elton, Thonas Wagoner, Charlie Huggins, and Chair GCene
Therriaul t.

SB 297- CONTRI BUTI ONS FROM PERM FUND DI VI DENDS

CHAIR CGENE THERRIAULT announced SB 297 to be up for
consideration. He asked Ms. Brakes to introduce the bill.

3:37:17 PM
HEATHER BRAKES, Staff to Senator Therriault, explained that the
bill establishes a streanlined nechanism for Al askans to donate

noney to charitable organizations. The Pernmanent Fund D vision
of the Departnment of Revenue would contract with an agent to
i npl emrent and administer the program She described the design
as simlar to what is currently done for the University of
Al aska college savings account through the Permanent Fund
D vidend (PFD) application.

The bill only allows applicants who file electronically the
option of making contribution(s) and the anount can either be a
varyi ng doll ar anmount or a percentage of the dividend.

The departnent would contract with an agent that would pay the
i npl enentation and admnistrative costs for the first three
years. The reason for that is so that the qualifying
organi zations would receive 100 percent of the donations. After
that tinme admnistrative costs would be deducted from the
donations and applied equitably to all recipients. The agent
woul d al so be responsible for the due diligence on applications
including verifying financial audi t s, sendi ng out t ax

SENATE STA COWM TTEE - 2- February 16, 2006



information to donors, and paying for the initial system
upgrades to design the application and load the system The
agent would also be responsible for confirmng that groups that
applied and had been accepted to the program were able to
recei ve and administer funds to the recipients.

Each of the estimated 500 organi zations that mght qualify for
inclusion nmust file an application. Qualifying criteria includes
having 501(c)(3) status for tw calendar years prior to
application. The organization nmust have an IRS 990 form on file
and have a local advisory board. As currently drafted, the
organi zations would receive $100,000 or 5 percent of their
annual receipts from contributions. If the annual budget is
hi gher than $50,000 in the preceding fiscal year t he
organi zati on nust provide the program agent with an independent
financial audit that is conducted by a certified accountant.
Grant organizations and contributors to 501(c)(4) or (6) non-
profits would not be eligible.

As currently drafted, the program sunsets in three years unless
reauthorized by the Legislature. The Rasmuson Foundation has
offered to underwite the estimated $300,000 in adm nistrative
and startup costs in the initial years.

3:42: 05 PM

CHAI R THERRI AULT added that eligibility is structured so that
contributions are restricted to established non-controversi al
entities that already have community support. You cannot have a
501(c)(3) that grants noney to (c)(4)s and (c)(6)s that can
engage in |obbying activities or political expenditures. The
idea is that the noney would flow to prograns that provide a
direct benefit in the public.

He noted that the title indicates the wde variety of
organi zations that would be eligible. He asked M. Brakes to
explain how they determned that there mght be 500 eligible
entities.

M5. BRAKES explained that: 3,000 non-profits are currently
registered in Alaska; 2,000 have current 990 tax returns on
file; 1,000 have audits; and 500 receive at |east 5 percent of
their annual receipts fromcharitable giving.

CHAIR THERRI AULT noted that Alaska and Hawaii have been

identified as the nobst generous region according to a recent
Time Magazine article. However, local charities have indicated

SENATE STA COWM TTEE - 3- February 16, 2006



that they tend to feel the brunt when Al askans respond to
di sasters outside the state.

SB 297 is a streanlined effort to take advantage of the offer
from the Rasnmuson Foundation to underwite the start-up costs
for a nunber of years.

3:47: 09 PM
SENATOR WAGONER asked whether this would require a rewite of
t he Permanent Fund conputer program

CHAI R THERRI AULT asked Ms. Barton to respond.

SHARON BARTON, Director, Permanent Fund D vidend Division

advised that it would take substantial changes to the conputer
system to recognize a request to deduct a certain anount from an
i ndi vidual check. The nunber of potential anounts under the
proposal adds further conplication. The initial estinmate,
including the changes to the web site, is $200,000 if paper
applications aren't included. Including paper applications wll
i ncrease the cost.

SENATOR WAGONER asked about the tim ng.

M5. BARTON responded optimstically and said she believes that
the division could get a contractor to conplete the project by
Oct ober 2007 as the bill envisions.

SENATOR ELTON asked for an interpretation of line 25 on page 3
to clarify whether it neans the paynment nmade in 2007 or the PFD
for 2007.

CHAI R THERRI AULT stated that the dividend paynent for 2007 is
determned by residency in 2006 so the division wuld have a
year to prepare for the electronic application that would be
available to fill out on January 1, 2007.

SENATOR ELTON noted that the bill speaks to the PFD for 2007 and
he didn't know if that is for residency in 2007 or the check
that is issued in 2007.

CHAI R THERRI AULT answered it's the check that is issued in 2007.

M5. BARTON advised that the division interprets the bill the
sanme way. It refers to the dividend that will be paid in Cctober
as the 2006 dividend. She said she interprets the bill to nean

t he dividend paid in 2007.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -4- February 16, 2006



CHAIR THERRI AULT said he would ask the drafter if adding the
word "issued" would clarify the point.

SENATOR ELTON asked if a parent could make a contribution froma
m nor child s check.

CHAI R THERRI AULT replied he envisions that they could. He asked
Ms. Barton if he could have his son’s check deposited into his
checki ng account .

M5. BARTON said yes and nothing in statute prohibits the
division from honoring a parent's request to nmake a donation
froma child s PFD.

SENATOR ELTON asked whether the state could make a contri bution
froma mnor's dividend if that minor is in state custody

CHAI R THERRI AULT replied that isn't his intent.

M5. BARTON added there is nothing in statute that would allow a
state agency to do that.

SENATOR ELTON asked for elaboration on the admi nistrative cost
and how those would be swtched in several years.

3:55:48 PM
MS. BRAKES explained that the intent is that the agent would pay
the administrative costs for the first three years. If the

program is reauthorized, the costs thereafter would be equally
distributed to the recipient organizations.

CHAIR THERRI AULT clarified there would be a fornula to spread
the costs anong the entities that received the noney.

SENATOR HUGA NS suggested that a $10 contribution floor m ght
not be practical. He then referenced a proposal to hold certain
PFD checks and asked whether those would be available for
donati ons.

M5. BARTON responded if that bill were to pass, the designated
donation would be held until the PFD was paid to the individual.
Designated donations wuld be handled the sane way that
gar ni shments are currently handl ed.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- February 16, 2006



CHAI R THERRI AULT suggested it mnmght be advisable to make the
policy call to disallow such deductions. Wth regard to a floor,
he said he was open to suggestion fromthe commttee.

JEFF CLARK, Chief Operating Oficer for the Rasnmuson Foundati on

asserted that it’s individuals who power the nation's
phil ant hropy. To denonstrate that point he reported that in 2003
non-profits received $241 billion, and 83 percent of the

donations cane from individuals. On the other hand, Al askans
typically give 30 percent less of their annual income to non-
profits than the nationw de average. The benefit of this
| egislation to Al askans, he said, is that the selection process
woul d be easier because the various entities would be listed in
one pl ace.

4:03:11 PM

CHAI R THERRI AULT asked Ms. Barton to talk about the additiona
expense associated with including the paper application in the
proposal and about the success the division has had in its
effort to encourage applicants to file electronically.

M5. BARTON expl ai ned that including paper applications wuld add
about $40,000 in programm ng costs. Information about the new
program would already be in the application booklet so the
increnental cost would be to include the check-off space on the
application and in the booklets that are distributed around the
state. The real cost comes fromthe fact that there is no unused
area on the application form which neans an additional page on
the application would be necessary. Last year the cost for the
extra page and additional forns was between $4,000 and $5, 000
Ms. Barton advised that the extra page would also place the
booklet into the next price range for postage so she would
estimate the overall additional costs associated with adding the
option to paper applications would be about $50, 000.

She reported that the effort to encourage el ectronic application
was overwhelnmngly successful. 282,000 people applied in
January, which is an encouraging increase from the 211,000
el ectronic applications filed last year. February has been
typically slow, but 350,000 on-line applications are anticipated
before the end of the application period. That would anobunt to a
little over half and nore are antici pated next year.

CHAIR THERRI AULT said he envisions a sorting nechanism that

would meke it weasier for applicants to find local entities
wi t hout having to sort through the statewi de I|ist.

SENATE STA COWM TTEE - 6- February 16, 2006



SENATOR ELTON announced that he would have his staff look into
the potential consequences this mght have in terns of |ocal
contributions to schools. A second question he had related to
how the distribution of donations would be inpacted since rura
areas of the state tend to wuse paper applications nore
frequently.

CHAIR THERRI AULT responded he didn't think the option would
i npact | ocal support in any way and it wouldn't factor into a
comunity's responsibility to support education.

He asked if nenbers had conments on the specific amount of the
donat i on.

SENATOR ELTON acknowl edged that it would be nore difficult for
the division to admnister, but he thought it would be best to
| eave the anmount open and without a floor.

SENATOR WAGONER observed that with electronic applications the
conputer wouldn't allow over contributions.

SENATOR HUGGE NS recall ed that no one took advantage of a simlar
bill that Senator Geen sponsored. He argued that donations
shoul d be higher than $10 and not exceed the total value of the
di vi dend.

M5. BARTON said sinplicity is better.

M5. BRAKES drew attention to page 2, line 2, which says: "If the
total amount of contributions elected by an applicant exceeds
the amount of the permanent fund dividend that the applicant is
entitled to receive, contributions shall be deducted from the
dividend in the order the organi zations el ected by the applicant

appear on the contribution list..." The recipient list s
reordered annually so that, for exanple, the ice skating club of
North Pole isn't always the last on the list and therefore

likely to receive the | east noney.

4:17: 38 PM
M5. BARTON said another option would be to deduct contributions
in the order that the person |ists themon the application.

CHAI R THERRI AULT revi ewed paragraph (8) on page 3 and said the
| anguage woul dn't preclude a smaller entity from participating;
it's just that a charity that has an annual budget |arger than
$250, 000 woul d have to fulfill the financial audit requirenent.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -7- February 16, 2006



M5. BRAKES agr eed.

SENATOR WAGONER nentioned Senator Geen's bill and questioned
spending the noney to establish this option wthout know ng the
| evel of interest at the comunity | evel.

CHAI R THERRI AULT rel ated that the other option set up an account
by which people could nmake donations whereas this option would
be part of the electronic application. He suggested that the
vari ous charitable organizations would probably encourage people
to make donations and furthernore this is a pilot program |If,
at the end of three year trial, there has been little response
t he program woul d sunset.

4:21:32 PM
SENATOR WAGONER remarked this could be an expensive effort that
m ght not increase the |evel of giving.

CHAI R THERRI AULT surm sed that the nore sophisticated charities
woul d say that the easier it is to give, the nore givers there
will be. The hope is that naking it easier to give will grow the
pool of givers.

SENATOR ELTON asked if the audit requirement for entities that
have an annual budget in excess of $250,000 was arbitrary
because he believes that any entity participating in the program
ought to be subject to an audit regardless of the size of its
budget .

He suggested it'd be worthwhile for nmenbers to check with |oca
United WAy canpai gns because a |lot of fundraising is targeted on
that October date and he suspects that this new option wll be
conpetition for the same funds.

CHAI R THERRI AULT asked Ms. Brakes the genesis of the $250, 000
t hr eshol d.

M5 BRAKES responded she wasn't sure where the dollar anount cane
from but M. Cark mght have an answer.

CHAI R THERRI AULT asked M. Cdark if the $250,000 audit threshold
was a federal requirenent.

MR. CLARK replied his understanding is that it is not a federa

requi renent and he would agree that the nunber is probably
arbitrary. Referencing previous comments he told the conmttee
that if five percent of the people who are eligible for the PFD

SENATE STA COWM TTEE - 8- February 16, 2006



were to make an average donation of $100, that would amount to

an incremental $3 nmillion per year for Alaska non-profits. This
is one avenue to help non-profits be nore sustainable, he said,
and if this bill passes, the Rasmuson Foundation woul d be happy

to undertake a public awareness canpai gn.

4:27:51 PM

CHAIR THERRI AULT asked M. Barton if she had denographic
information on the nore than 300,000 electronic applications
t hat have been fil ed.

M5. BARTON replied 2004 applications were received from every
zip code in the state, but she hadn't broken down whether or not
there was a higher percentage of electronic filers comng from
Anchorage - for exanple - than rural Alaska. That's the next
step, she said.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked if Friends of the National Rifle
Association (NRA) would fit the paraneters.

CHAI R THERRI AULT said he didn't believe so because of | obbying
activities, but the process begins with inquiring about the
entity's specific status. The next hurdle is that if the entity
is a 501(c)(3) non-profit, it cannot grant any of its noney to a
501(c)(4) or a 501(c)(6).

CHAI R THERRI AULT encouraged nenbers to contact their |ocal
United Way canpaigns and announced he would hold SB 297 in
comittee.

There being no further business to conme before the commttee
Chair Therriault adjourned the neeting at 4:31:20 PM

SENATE STA COWM TTEE - 9- February 16, 2006



